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TODAY’S PRESENTER

Melissa Cornish

Grants Consultant

• 15+ years in academia serving as project 
manager/leader and research analyst in biotech, 
clinical and health services research areas

• Harness my skills in competitive intelligence, project 
management and communication to support academic 
clients in securing new funding with federal and non-
private sponsors

• Consultant with Hanover since 2017

• My greatest loves are these 3 Cs: my children, the 
Carolina coast, and cooking



OUR PARTNERSHIP TO DATE
• A Series of Webinars

• Webinar #1: The Grant Funding Landscape (Clinton Doggett, Senior Grants 
Advisor), May 18, 2018

• Webinar #2: Competitive Grantsmanship: Strategic Approaches to 
Grantseeking and Project Design ->> TODAY!

• Webinar #3: Rejection, Revision and Resubmission ->> January 17, 2019 (10 
AM EST)

• The Research Excellence Partnership: 
https://research.uconn.edu/funding/research-excellence-
program/announcement/#

https://research.uconn.edu/funding/research-excellence-program/announcement/


SESSION LOGISTICS

▪ Today’s session, 10:00-11:00 AM

▪ ~45 min presentation

▪ Followed by 15 min of Q&A at the end - questions welcome by Skype chat



TODAY’S TOPICS

PA R T  1

K N OW I N G  T H E  F U N D E R

PA R T  2

U N D E R S TA N D I N G  T H E  S O L I C I TAT I O N  

PA R T  3

P R E PA R I N G  YO U R  R E S P O N S E  A N D  D E M O N S T R AT I N G  
A L I G N M E N T

OVERVIEW

In a competitive 
federal landscape, 
what can you do to 
make your proposal 
more competitive? 
What is important 
to know about the 
funder? How can 
you demonstrate 

that your project is 
aligned with funder 

expectations? 
During this training, 
you will learn how 
to understand and 

respond to a 
funding solicitation 

and develop key 
design essentials.



THE GRANT PROCESS

PAY ATTENTION, BUT DON’T PANIC
Great idea

Find funders

2. Build a 
concept

3. Sell the 
concept

4. Formal 
application

5. Grant award

6. Do the work

7. Prepare for 
future funding



BEFORE WE FIGURE OUT THE FUNDER

A strategic approach to grant-writing is most effective over the long term.

1. Articulate your long-term goals.

2. Delineate the role of funding in achieving your goals.

3. Map out an ideal grant funding trajectory.

4. Make a plan to stay on track.

5. Work the plan.

6. Revisit the plan and revise as necessary.

In every grant-seeking cycle, keep your long-term trajectory and “roadmap” in 
mind: How will this grant process advance my goals?

Develop a grant funding strategy to support your great idea:

Then, identify a funder  ->>>>



PART 1: KNOWING THE FUNDER



FUNDING IN YOUR FIELD

With the overall field in mind, survey the funding landscape.

▪ Who are the key funders in your field?

– Within the federal government: NSF, NIH, DoD, DoE?

▪ What are their priorities?

– Stated and unstated

▪ What are the overall funding trends in your field?

▪ Are there potential untapped sources of funding in your field?



EVALUATING OPPORTUNITIES

Good prospect ive funders  have:
✓ A mission that aligns with your mission
✓ A history of funding similar or related projects
✓ Stated priorities that encompass your project area
✓ No restrictions that would preclude funding your project

However,  i t  should be  noted,  
▪ Funding history is not always a good predictor of future 

funding.
▪ Stated priorities are not always current.
▪ Finding good prospects sometimes requires reading 

between the lines.
▪ Program Officers can help you avoid going down the 

wrong path.

Prioritize 
prospects 
based on 

alignment, 
potential 

benefit, ease 
of pursuit, and 

timeline 
urgency



THE FEDERAL GRANTSEEKING LANDSCAPE

▪ Hyper-competitive research environments

▪ Earlier research independence is challenging as early-stage faculty 
struggle to secure their first grant

▪ Mid- to late- stage faculty risk losing existing funding

Average age of investigators getting their first R01 is at an all-time high of 46 years old.
-Levitt M, Levitt J. “Future of fundamental discovery in US biomedical research”. PNAS June 20, 2017. 114 (25) 6498-6503; published ahead of print June 5, 
2017. https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1609996114

- Number of 
PIs

- Number of 
Grant 

Applications

- Dollars

- Success 
Rates

https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1609996114


PART 2: UNDERSTANDING THE 

SOLICITATION



COMPETITIVE PROJECT DESIGN

PAY ATTENTION, BUT DON’T PANIC
Great idea

Find funders

2. Build a 
concept

3. Sell the 
concept

4. Formal 
application

5. Grant award

6. Do the work

7. Prepare for 
future funding

Competitive project design is 
built on:

▪ Great ideas

▪ …matched with appropriate 
funders

▪ Strong concepts

▪ …connected to funders’ 
goals 



WHICH ONE?

▪ Grants.gov is a clearinghouse for                                                                    
information on Federal grants

– Subscription option to the NIH TOC                                                                       
Email Listserve for Weekly                                                               Grants & 
Contracts announcement

▪ NSF Award Search and the NEH Funded Projects Query Form are good 
resources for information on previous funding and trends

▪ The US Department of Education Grants Forecast provides information on 
upcoming DoE competitions

▪ Other Resources: Federal RePORTER, Foundation Center, Sponsored Program 
Websites, COS PIVOT, InfoEd

http://www.grants.gov/
https://www.nsf.gov/awardsearch/
https://securegrants.neh.gov/publicquery/main.aspx
https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/find/edlite-forecast.html
https://federalreporter.nih.gov/
http://foundationcenter.org/
http://fundingportal.unc.edu/cos-pivot/
https://pivot.cos.com/login
https://eresearch.mssm.edu/
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FIRST, AN EXAMPLE
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Link to NIH Due Dates: https://grants.nih.gov/grants/how-to-apply-application-guide/due-dates-and-submission-policies/due-dates.htm#review
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https://grants.nih.gov/grants/how-to-apply-application-guide/due-dates-and-submission-policies/due-dates.htm#review
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…it is time to start pulling apart
the Solicitation to figure out
what is needed for your plan:

• Full Text of Announcement
• General overview of the 

opportunity – including a 
brief history/description, 
objectives of the 
particular opportunity, 
high-level requirements 
and details related to the 
research team and 
collaborators.



…it is time to start pulling apart the
Solicitation to figure out what is
needed for your plan:

• Award Information
• Funding instrument
• Application Types Allowed
• Clinical Trial – allowed or                 

not
• Funds Available and 

Anticipated Number of Awards
• Award Budget – i.e. up to 

$275K in direct costs for    
entire project period and       
no more than $200K in any 
single year

• Award Project Period – i.e. max 
project period is 2 years



…it is time to start pulling
apart the Solicitation to
figure out what is needed
for your plan:

Eligibility Information:
• Eligible Applicants at the 

Institution level and the 
PI/PD level

• Cost Sharing

• Additional Information 
on Eligibility



…it is time to start pulling
apart the Solicitation to
figure out what is needed for
your plan:

• The Application and 
Submission Information –
the real nuts and bolts!



…it is time to start pulling apart
the Solicitation to figure out what
is needed for your plan:

• Application Review Information



CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:

 Does the program align with the goals of my project?

 Does the program support activities I plan to pursue in my project?

 Does the program grant enough funding to support my project?

 Is there evidence of past support to projects similar to mine?

 Is the opportunity well-suited to the stage of my research?



PART 3: PREPARING YOUR 

RESPONSE AND DEMONSTRATING 

ALIGNMENT 



A SERIES OF EVENTS

After you’ve found the right 
solicitation 

Review Grantmaker Materials:

▪ Review
▪ Grantmaker guidance
▪ The specific solicitation
▪ Funded grants (if available)

▪ Confirm eligibility, deadlines, and 
the submission process and method

Design a Project, Establish a Plan



REVIEW GRANTMAKER MATERIALS

▪ Review the eligibility requirements

▪ Evaluate the funding amount and project 
period 

▪ Map out your strategy to develop and submit 
the proposal on time

▪ Note deadlines for Letter of Intent, pre-
proposal, and full proposal

▪ Allow time to get internal approval before 
submission

▪ Note character-, word-, and page-limits as well 
as formatting requirements

▪ Always allow time for derailments ->> plan to 
submit well before the deadline

And then review the Solicitation again! 



ESTABLISH A PLAN

▪ Identify your internal capacity and expertise

▪ Evaluate your timeframe and considerations

▪ Assess external support

▪ Apply planning tools, if needed



A GOOD CONCEPT

Good proposals come from good concepts.

Strong narratives answer core questions clearly and succinctly:

1. What do you want to do, how much will it cost, and how much time will it 
take?

2. How does the proposed project relate to the sponsor's interests?

3. What difference will the project make to your institution, your students, your 
discipline, the state, the nation, and other stakeholders?

4. What has already been done, and how will your project advance that work?

5. How do you plan to implement and accomplish project goals and outcomes?

6. How will the results be evaluated?

7. Why should you, rather than someone else, be selected to do this project?

The best proposals make the reviewers say: “I wish I had thought of that!”



THE GRANT PROCESS

Great idea

Find funders

2. Build a 
concept

3. Sell the 
concept

4. Formal 
application

5. Grant award

6. Do the work

7. Prepare for 
future funding

Project Design



DESIGNING THE PROJECT

“Project Design” refers to the structure of a grant project that is optimal if it 
happens before proposal development.

Project Design includes:

▪ Who

▪ What

▪ When

▪ Where

▪ Why

▪ How

…and how those elements work together to accomplish your goal.

An “outcomes-based” design process will ensure a strong project design. Build a 
concrete logic model beginning with outcomes and impact goals. 



MAKE A GRANT DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Map out your strategy to develop and submit the proposal on time.

▪ Create a Checklist of all required proposal elements.

▪ Develop a Timeline for proposal development, including key dates and 
responsibility assignments

▪ Note deadline for Letter of Intent or pre-proposal, as well as proposal 
deadline.

▪ Plan at least one conversation with a program officer, if allowed.

▪ Allow time to get internal approval before submission.

▪ Outline the Narrative based on the scoring rubric or key section headings 

▪ Note character-, word-, and page-limits, as well as formatting requirements.

Always allow time for derailments: Plan to submit WELL BEFORE the deadline.



Activity / Deliverable Lead* Due Date
Task 

Completed
Review solicitation, create a checklist of all requirements, notify Sponsored 
Programs Services, if appropriate

PI 7/9

Develop timeline of key dates and responsibility PI 7/13

Create outline of Research Plan Narrative and its components PI 7/30

Schedule calls/meetings with collaborator(s) as needed PI weekly

Draft content of Narrative into Draft #1 PI 8/17

Draft Letter of Support template and request from collaborators, noted their 
deadline (if relevant)

PI 8/27

Refine Narrative into Draft #2, draft Aims (if applicable) Abstract PI 8/31

Outline budget and corresponding justification, enlist support from SPS (if 
appropriate)

PI 9/7

Develop / collate content for ancillary materials:
Biosketch(es), Facilities & Resources, other related materials

PI 9/7

Request colleague(s) to review Draft #2, requested date for letters of support to 
be returned

PI 9/14

Edit Draft after colleague review – create near-final Narrative (Draft #3) PI 9/28

Finalize Aims and Abstract based on near-final version of Narrative PI 10/1

Finalize budget and justification (and circulate for routing if required) PI 10/1

Finalize Research Plan Narrative and prepare all documents for submission PI 10/5

Submit full application package to SPO (due by 5 PM local time on 10/16) PI 10/9

• Set monthly (or weekly) goals
• Establish action steps to meet each goals

*or PI designee



WRITE THE NARRATIVE

Strong narratives have similar core elements:

• Statement of the Problem

• Literature Review

• Conceptual Framework

• Hypotheses / Research Questions / Goals / Objectives / Aims

• Methodology / Strategy

• Scope of Work 

• Management Plan

• Faculty / Staff and Institutional Qualifications

Note that each Solicitation will require information to be presented in specific ways.



THE EVALUATION PLAN

Explain how you will evaluate the project’s success.

▪ Include formative (process) and summative (results) evaluation plans.

▪ Describe how you will use formative evaluation data to refine the project design.

▪ Describe the qualifications of evaluators.

▪ Describe any instruments that will be used to collect data, explain why are they 
appropriate, and provide evidence of the instruments' reliability and validity.

▪ Provide detailed data analysis procedures.

A thorough evaluation should include:

Summative evaluation: What did you accomplish?

Formative evaluation: How did the process go?

Feedback mechanisms that allow you to make course corrections based on mid-project 
evaluation results.

Evaluation plans should reflect activities, outputs, and outcomes in the logic model.



REFINE THE NARRATIVE

Your narrative should communicate your project clearly and appropriately.

Tips for narrative development:

▪ Know your audience.

▪ Write clearly and in an appropriate style.

▪ Use SMART goals.

▪ Provide logic models where appropriate.

▪ Present information in tables and figures 
where appropriate.

▪ Use skillful repetition.

▪ Seek feedback from peers and grant professionals.

Above all: give yourself plenty of time.



TONE AND STYLE

▪ The proposal as sales pitch

▪ Formality levels

▪ Use of point-of-view: First vs third-person

▪ The grant narrative genre

▪ Use available (successful) examples as 
models/templates, when possible



DEVELOP THE BUDGET & JUSTIFICATION

Typical budget lines include:

▪ Personnel

▪ Fringe Benefits (standard rates)

▪ Travel 

▪ Equipment (durable, long-lasting)

▪ Supplies (expendable, short-term)

▪ Contractual

▪ Construction

▪ Indirect Costs (note limitations)

▪ Other 

It is often helpful to develop the budget in a 
separate spreadsheet using categories that 
make sense internally, and only “translate” to 
the grantmaker’s required form after the 
budget is final.

The budget narrative must be 
consistent with the project 
narrative.

Be specific!

Show a clear method of 
calculation for each item.

Link each item back to grant 
activities and grantmaker goals.

Use the same terminology that 
you used in the project narrative.

A table can make the information 
easier to digest, 
even in the budget 
narrative.



CREATE ATTACHMENTS

Attachments vary by funder and solicitation, but often include:

▪ Abstract / Project Summary (Write it last!)

▪ Biosketches / CVs

▪ Quotations or documentation for specific budget items

▪ Detailed project timelines

▪ Letters of commitment or Memoranda of Understanding

▪ Agency-specific documents (e.g., NSF’s Current and Pending Support)

Keep careful track of all of your attachments!



ASSEMBLE AND SUBMIT

After each element of the proposal is complete, assemble the final package.

▪ Review the package as a whole:

▪ Is it internally consistent?

▪ Does it follow all funder guidelines?

▪ Will a reviewer be able to find what s/he needs in the package?

▪ Will a reviewer who doesn’t know you, your institution, or your work 
need any additional information to understand your project?

▪ Double check to make sure the package is complete.

▪ Obtain internal approval for submission.

▪ Submit the package before the deadline date if at all possible.



BEING COMPETITIVE

Grant competitiveness is multi-faceted; pay attention to all the elements.

Key elements of grant competitiveness:

1. PI qualifications and experience

2. Established relationships and collaborations

3. Resources available

4. Alignment ->> Responsiveness to funder interests and requirements

5. Rationale

6. Project design

7. Preliminary work



INCREASING YOUR COMPETITIVENESS

▪ Establish and document appropriate collaborations

▪ Publish preliminary studies

▪ Increase the number of publications relevant to the proposed work

▪ Know your research environment (personnel, equipment, institutional 
supports) to leverage its strengths, identify and address critical gaps, and 
minimize other weaknesses

▪ Establish a record of funding, even if it is internal awards (and publish your 
findings!)

▪ Take on trainees and develop / participate in outreach if relevant to your 
target opportunities 

▪ Serve as a reviewer



LEARN FROM THE PROCESS

To survive and thrive in the grant process:

▪ Start early.

▪ Keep checklists and refer to them often.

▪ Stay connected with Grants staff.

▪ Stay connected with Program Officer(s).

▪ Get external feedback from peers and professionals.

▪ Keep a pulse on trends and priorities so that your design stays aligned.

Remember: Your skills and savvy will improve with each grant.



THE GRANTSEEKING PROCESS IS
COMPLEX AND LAYERED.

A STRATEGIC APPROACH IS 
ESSENTIAL FOR SUCCESS.



HANOVER RESEARCH SUPPORT
Proposal Review

We review and critique a client-drafted proposal narrative, providing feedback on alignment with funding 
opportunity announcement; competitiveness; and general grantsmanship. Reviewers make specific 
recommendations using margin comments and/or produce a memo outlining high-level recommendations; 
and provide a debrief phone call. Timeline: 2-3 weeks

Proposal Revision

We review and critique a client-drafted proposal narrative, providing feedback on alignment with funding 
opportunity announcement; competitiveness; and general grantsmanship. Reviewers make specific 
recommendations using margin comments and/or produce a memo outlining high-level recommendations; 
make suggested revisions to the proposal using Track Changes to focus on achieving clarity and effective 
use of language; and provide a debrief phone call. Timeline: 3-4 weeks

Proposal Support

We supplement the work of project teams by providing partial proposal writing support and consultative 
grant narrative editing and review. These services vary based on client needs and submission deadlines.

Timeline: 6-12 weeks

Contact Matt Mroz in the Office of the Vice President for Research to request Hanover support.



KATY BRISTOW

Content Director

Email: kbristow@hanoverresearch.com

Phone: 202-793-8712

Questions?

mailto:cdoggett@hanoverresearch.Com

